
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL  

JUNE 10, 2019 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, June 10, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, 
WI, in the second floor Council Chambers.  
           

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Mike O’Keefe 
 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 

Common Council – Mayor Mike O’Keefe, Council 
Members Sherry Bublitz, Jack Arnett, Kristin Burkart,  
Rick Verhaalen, Garan Chivinski, Patricia Thome and 
Rod Galbraith 
 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - May 13, 2019 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
* A. Consider Ordinance No. 2019-10 amending Sec. 13-1-55 of the Zoning Code to  

allow CBD Dispensaries as a Permitted Use or as a Conditional Use in the B-3 
Central Business District; and action thereon (Plan Comm. 05-06-19) 

 
9. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 A. Oath of Office – Patrol Officer Dominic P. Andrew 
 
 B.  Consider appointment of Claire Woodall-Vogg as City Clerk; and action 

thereon/Oath of Office 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
* A. Consider proposal received from Graef for engineering design services 

associated with the rehabilitation of the Woolen Mills Dam; and action thereon 
 

Page 1 of 118



* B. Consider Resolution No. 2019-08 approving the appointment of interim judge for 
the Mid-Moraine Municipal Court; and action thereon 

 
* C. Consider establishing hours for the North 48 Outdoor Alcohol Beverage License 

at W62 N599 Washington Avenue; and action thereon 
 
* D. Consider application of Le’s Pho LLC, Ly Q Le, Agent, for a “Class B” Liquor 

license for Le’s Pho at W63 N146 Washington Avenue; and action thereon 
 
 E. Consider Mayor O’Keefe’s appointment Jocelyn Russo to the Library Board and 

reappointment of Greg Zimmerschied to the Economic Development Board; and 
action thereon 

 
 F. Consider Mayor O’Keefe’s Council Member appointments of Sherry Bublitz to the 

Public Art Commission and Rick Verhaalen to the Mid-Moraine Legislative 
Committee (alternate); and action thereon 

 
* G. Consider Resolution No. 2019-09 designating and authorizing signatures for the 

City of Cedarburg checking and savings accounts for the ensuing year; and 
action thereon 

 
* H. Consider Resolution No. 2019-10 designating Light & Water checking and 

savings accounts for ensuing year; and action thereon 
 
*** I. Consider License/Permit Applications; and action thereon 
    
 1. Consider approval of 2019-2020 alcohol and operator licenses (see 

attached list) 
 
* J. Consider payment of bills dated 05/06/19 through 05/31/19, transfers for the 

period 05/11/19 through 06/07/19; and payroll for the period 05/11/19 through 
06/07/19; and action thereon 

 
11. REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
* B. Building Inspector’s Report – May 2019 
* C. Fire Inspector’s Report – April 2019 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 118



13. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
  

It is anticipated the Common Council will adjourn to closed session pursuant to: 
  

 State Statutes 19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel for the Common Council 
who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted with 
respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved and 19.85(1)(e) to 
deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public 
funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, to:  

 Discuss the Prochnow Landfill; 
 Discuss the Highway 60 Business Park; 
 Approve May 13, 2019 closed session minutes.    

 
14.    RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
  
15.    ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 
 
 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
06/06/19 ckm  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 118

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


“Class A” Intoxicating Liquor (Off-Premise Consumption Only): 
 
The Shinery Neenah, LLC, P.O. Box 128, Larsen, WI  54947, Elizabeth A. Reissmann, Agent, 
premises to be licensed:  W63 N706 Washington Avenue, known as The Shinery. 
 
 
Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage and “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor (On or Off-
Premise Consumption): 
 
Peter Wollner Post #288 of the American Legion, W57 N481 Hilbert Avenue, Cedarburg, WI  
53012, James A. Lee, Agent, premises to be licensed:  W57 N481 Hilbert Avenue, known as 
Peter Wollner Post No. 288 of the American Legion. 
 
Morton’s Wiscons Inn LLC, N56 W6339 Center Street, Cedarburg, WI  53012, Chris Morton, 
Agent, premises to be licensed:  N56 W6339 Center Street, known as Morton’s Wiscons Inn. 
 
 
New Operator License applications for the period ending June 30, 2019 for: 
 
Samuel T. Bolgert    Michael D. Johnson 
Whitney H. Dobson                                  Gary W. Rogahn 
Madissen Homayouni                              Cynthia Sayles-Albers 
Payman Homayouni 
 
 
New Operator License applications for the period ending June 30, 2020 for: 
 
Timothy J. Biloff    Sandra L. Oesterreich 
Jennifer A. Kaltenbrun                             Emily S. Schaefer  
Mallory R. Madison 
 
Renewal Operator License applications for the period ending June 30, 2020 for: 
 
Lucas A. Allen 
Carol A. Ameen 
Stephanie J.L. Baldwin 
Deborah Bath 
Dena C. Baule 
Tamara J. Behling 
Michael C. Besaw 
Samuel T. Bolgert 
Jody L. Brzezinski 
Daniel M. Burback 
Candace A. Burger 
Annette L. Chiddister-Woods 
Callen L. Cummings 
Brady S. Curtis 
Eva M. Danner 
Steve F. Danner 

 
Christine A. Krause 
Audrey L. Krick 
Angela M. Kroner 
Pamela S. LaBouve 
Kelly Langerman 
Cynthia M. Larson 
Mark E. Larson 
James J. Levine 
David L. Magnusson 
Kayla M. Matter 
Josh McCutcheon 
Kari S. Midtbo Schwartz 
Brenda L. Mueller 
Carrie G. Mueller 
Judith A. Murphy 
Annette M. Mytko-Kennedy 

Page 4 of 118



Benjamin J. Dereszynski 
Whitney H. Dobson 
Chad A. Doedens 
Adam S. Dykema 
Kimberly R. Eggleston 
Christina N. Gabrielson 
Jeanette L. Gabrys 
Scott R. Galaszewski 
Daniel J. Gogin 
Julie B. Gottfried 
Elizabeth R. Grade 
David B. Haberman 
Angela L. Habermann 
Christine M. Habich 
H. Michael Hagerman 
Carina R. Heckert 
Gina A. Heidemann 
Terri J. Heidtke 
Andrew G. Henning 
Catherine A. Hilgart 
Madilyn M. Hill 
James M. Hintz 
Elizabeth N. Hoffman 
BJ Homayouni 
Christopher M. Homayouni 
Madissen Homayouni 
Payman Homayouni  
Brian M. Jackson 
Christine M. Jackson 
Sarah N. Jellen 
Michael D. Johnson 
Lori E. Josephson 
MaryLee Katzka 
Mark A. Kennedy 
Randall H. Kison 
Keri Klemann 
Scott A. Kosidowski 
Stacy J. Kowalkowski 
Mark C. Kowalkowski 
 

Shelby L. Neelis 
Jamie N. Nevins 
Nicholas M. Nevins 
Debra M. Newell 
Jakob P. Pedersen 
David J. Polacek 
Christine Pope 
Martha K. Ray 
Michael J. Reimer 
Deborah A. Sajdak 
Cynthia M. Sayles-Albers 
Tori L. Schone 
Jeannette M. Schupp 
Logan T. Sheckles 
Megan N. Shodeen 
Jean M. Snow-Lambo 
Ann M. Speirs 
Scott W. Steffen 
Becky A. Steliga 
Laura M. Struebing 
Suzanne L. Stubblefield 
Michelle L. Taraboi 
Kerry K. Tharp 
Kaylyn T. Thomas 
Robert R. Vanderloop 
Jessica M. Wallace 
John C. Wallus 
Stacey L. Wedereit 
Larry D. Weidmann 
Michelle L. Welch 
John A. Welk 
Patrick R. Weyer 
Amy L. Whitney 
Jennifer L. Wilhelm 
Joseph P. Willbrandt 
Stephen R. Wilson 
Heather L. Zimel 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 118



Page 6 of 118



Page 7 of 118



Page 8 of 118



Page 9 of 118



Page 10 of 118



Page 11 of 118



Page 12 of 118



Page 13 of 118



Page 14 of 118



Page 15 of 118



Page 16 of 118



Page 17 of 118



Page 18 of 118



Page 19 of 118



 
 CITY OF CEDARBURG 

MEETING DATE June 10, 2019                                                                ITEM NO: 8. A. 
 
TITLE:   Consider Ordinance No. 2019-10 amending Sec. 13-1-55 of the Zoning Code to  allow CBD 
Dispensaries as a Permitted Use or as a Conditional Use in the B-3 Central Business District; and 
action thereon (Plan Comm. 05-06-19) 
 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  While it has been advertised that the ErthScent Dispensary store is “coming 

soon” to Cedarburg, staff notes that this announcement preceded a determination that the proposed 

use is permitted in our downtown business district. More specifically, Without first asking staff 

whether her use was allowed by code, the applicant mailed in her application for an occupancy 

permit, began to move her CBD Dispensary use into the existing building at W61 N510 Washington 

Avenue (former Glad Rags), covered the front windows and placed a “coming soon” sign in the front 

window. Upon receipt of the occupancy permit application, staff reviewed the B-3 Central Business 

District language and determined that since the use was not listed as either permitted by right or as a 

conditional use in the B-3 District, it is not allowed. The applicant was then notified of this and 

advised that she could pursue a zoning text amendment to have the Plan Commission and Common 

Council consider adding CBD Dispensaries to the list of permitted uses.  

 

The applicant then submitted an application for a zoning text amendment and to help define the use 

she was asked to describe her business and provide staff with a comprehensive list of the products 

that will be sold in the store. While this list is included in your packet, staff would encourage Council 

Members to review the Erth Scentials website for the list of products currently being sold at their Bay 

View store. With that information, the applicant is requesting to have CBD Dispensaries added to the 

list of permitted uses in the B-3 Central Business District. As Council Members may know, there is a 

two-step process required for considering zoning text amendments; first the Plan Commission must 

review the proposed change and then offer a recommendation to the Commons Council. The 

second step requires the Council to hold a public hearing, consider the recommendation of the Plan 

Commission and then take into account public comment before rendering a decision. 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: At their May 6, 2019 meeting, the 

Plan Commission recommended denial of this request. 

 

Staff Comments: 

The purpose of zoning is to separate land uses into areas of like uses. According to “A Glossary of 

Zoning, Development and Planning Terms” published by the American Planning Association, zoning 

is defined as: the division of a city or county by legislative regulations into areas, or zones, 

which specify allowable uses for real property and size restrictions for buildings within these 

areas. The City of Cedarburg is divided into 32 separate zoning districts, two of which are devoted to 

retail uses: the B-2 Community Business District and the B-3 Central Business District. Each of the 

City’s zoning districts has a list of uses permitted by right and a separate list of uses permitted by 

conditional use grant.  

 

The B-3 District covers the entire downtown area and its Purpose and Intent is to provide for the 

preservation of Cedarburg’s historic downtown and the orderly appropriate regulations to 

ensure the compatibility of the diverse uses typical of the downtown area without inhibiting 
Page 20 of 118



the potential for maximum development of commercial, cultural, entertainment, and other 

urban activities which contribute to its role as the heart of the City. This area contains a mix 

of retail shops, offices, restaurants, cultural, entertainment, and residential uses.    

 

The B-2 District is located along South Washington Avenue from Evergreen Boulevard to Pioneer 

Road, a small area along the east side of north Washington Avenue and north of Cambridge 

Avenue, and at the intersection of Bridge Street and Columbia Road. According to its purpose, this 

District is intended to provide for the orderly and attractive grouping at appropriate locations 

of retails stores, shops, offices, and service establishments serving the daily needs of the 

surrounding local community area. The size and locations of such districts shall be based on 

upon evidence of justifiable community need, of adequate customer potential, of satisfactory 

relationship to the traffic circulation system, and other related facilities and potential 

contribution to the economic welfare of the community. 

 

While the applicant’s request is specific to amending the B-3 Central Business District, Council 

Members should review the predetermined uses (see enclosed district language) listed in both the B-

2 and the B-3 Districts and, based on the nature of the proposed use, determine whether the CBD 

Dispensary use is compatible with the established uses, the purpose and intent of the B-3 District or 

whether it is more consistent with the list of uses and character of the B-2 Community Business 

District. As noted above, the Plan Commission Discuss this requested change at their May 6
th

 

meeting and again at the June 3
rd

 meeting where they felt the use better fit the intent of the B-2 

District. At that meeting, the Commission discussed a proposed ordinance drafted by City Attorney 

Mike Herbrand with the understanding that they were leaning toward adding CBD Dispensaries to 

the B-2 Community Business District. However, because the Commission wanted to fine tune the 

proposed ordinance, they deferred action on it until their next meeting.  

 

Included in your packet is the draft Ordinance that the Plan Commission is currently considering to 

support their findings that the CBD Dispensary use is a use that is more consistent with the purpose 

and intent of the B-2 Community Business District. 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Proposed Ordinance No. 2019-10 – B-3 Central Business District 
 5/6/2019 Plan Commission Minutes. 
 Copy of the B-2 and B-3 District Language. 
 Email from City Attorney Tim Schoonenberg 
 CBD Summary Sheet from Attorney Jeffrey A. Cormell. 
 Emails from Jennifer Kawczynski, Kath Gruszecki, John Pawlowski,& Jennifer Gelinskey, 

Aaron Schulz 
 Article “Hemp industry getting greener”. 
 Article “Food Containing Cannabis Extract Runs into a Snag” 
 Proposed CBD Dispensary Ordinance – B-2 Community Business District 

 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Jennifer Kawczynski, ErthScent 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 

 Page 21 of 118



DRAFT 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-10 

 

An Ordinance Relating to Permitted or Conditional 

Uses in the B-3 Central District 

 

The Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 13-1-55 of the Municipal Code of the City of Cedarburg is hereby 

amended as follows: 

 

SEC. 13-1-55  B-3 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT.  
  

(a) Purpose and Intent.  The B-3 Central Business District is intended to provide for the 

preservation of Cedarburg’s historic downtown and the orderly appropriate regulations to 

ensure the compatibility of the diverse uses typical of the downtown area without 

inhibiting the potential for maximum development of commercial, cultural, 

entertainment, and other urban activities which contribute to its role as the heart of the 

City.   This area contains a mix of retail sales shops, office, restaurants, cultural, 

entertainment, and residential uses. 

(b) General Requirements. 

 (1) Overall development shall be compatible with the City’s community character, 

urban design, historic preservation principles and shall facilitate the objectives as 

expressed in the adopted Cedarburg Smart Growth Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

– 2015, and components thereof. 

 (2) A major portion of the B-3 District is also regulated by the City’s Historic 

Preservation District (HPD).  This is an “overlay” district created to protect 

historic buildings and sites that are listed on the National Register of Historic 

Places.  The design, remodeling, reconstruction, painting, and site improvements 

within the HPD area require approval and a Certificate of Appropriateness by 

both the City’s Landmarks Commission and Plan Commission. 

 (3) Buildings shall be designed to correspond in height, width, proportion, 

relationship to street, roof forms, composition, window and door patterns, 

materials and colors compatible with existing buildings in the downtown area. 

 (4) All buildings in the HPD portion of the B-3 District existing prior to October 28, 

2013 are considered to be conforming structures relative to dimensional 

requirements to maintain the integrity of the Historic District.  If such buildings 

are ever damaged or destroyed, they may be reconstructed exactly in their pre-

damaged or pre-destroyed location and dimensional configuration. 

 (5) Single-family and two-family homes existing prior to October 28, 2013 are non-

conforming uses and may be continued pursuant to Section 13-1-140 titled Non-

conforming Uses. 

(c) Permitted Uses.  (Also see Section 13-1-225.)  

(1) Antique and collectors stores. 

(2) Art stores, studios, galleries. 

Page 22 of 118



(3) Auto parts stores. 

(4) Bagel shops, bakeries. 

(5) Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and other financial 

institutions (not including drive-in or drive-thru facilities). 

(6) Barber shops and beauty shops. 

(7) Bicycle sales, repair and rental. 

(8) Bookstores. 

(9) Boutiques. 

(10) Business, professional, medical, and utility offices.  

(11) Camera, photographic supply stores, and photographic studios. 

(12) Catering Services. 

(13) Clinics (dental, medical, chiropractic). 

(14) Clothing stores.  

(15) Cocktail lounges, bars, and taverns. 

(16) Coffee shops and espresso bars. 

(17) Computer sales and services. 

(18) Cultural Centers. 

(19) Delicatessen.  

(20) Department stores. 

(21) Electronics and appliance stores, and repair shops. 

(22) Farmers markets, including farm products, food, crafts, and food vendors. 

(23) Fish markets. 

(24) Florists, yard and garden supplies, and service. 

(25) Furniture sales. 

(26) Furriers and fur apparel. 

(27) Gift stores. 

(28) Grocery stores. 

(29) Hardware stores.  

(30) Health clubs, athletic clubs, and gymnasiums. 

(31) Hobby and craft stores.  

(32) Ice cream parlors/soda fountain stores. 

(33) Insurance offices. 

(34) Interior decorators. 

(35) Jewelry stores.  

(36) Liquor stores. 

(37) Lodges and clubs.  

(38) Meat markets.  

(39) Museums. 

(40) Music stores.  

(41) Newspaper and magazine stores.  

(42) Office supplies and business machine stores  

(43) Optical stores.  

(44) Paint, glass, and wallpaper stores.  

(45) Pet stores and pet grooming (with all operations indoors).  

(46) Pharmacy (not including drive-thru service). 

  (47) Plumbing and heating supplies.  

Page 23 of 118



(48) Publishing houses.  

(49) Real estate offices. 

(50) Restaurants (without drive-thru facilities). 

(51) Self-service laundries and dry cleaning establishments.  

(52) Shoe and leather goods stores.  

(53) Spas and fitness facilities. 

(54) Specialty food and beverage product sales. 

(55) Specialty retail shops for housewares, stationary, home décor, lighting products, 

and athletic and sporting goods. 

(56) Tailor shops. 

(57) Theaters.  

(58) Tobacco shops.  

(59) Used merchandise resale shops (excluding pawn shops). 

(60) Variety stores.  

(61) Residential use of single-family and two-family structures that existed prior to the 

adoption of this Ordinance.   

(62) CBD Dispensaries. (?) 

(d) Permitted Accessory Uses. 

(1) Residential quarters provided that such quarters are in the principal building, not 

on a ground-level floor, and the entrances and exits to such quarters are directed 

to the interior of the building.  There shall be a minimum floor area of four-

hundred and twenty (420) square feet for an efficiency or one (1) bedroom 

apartment and five-hundred and fifty (550) square feet for a two (2) bedroom 

apartment. 

(2) Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above uses, including 

garages used in conjunction with the operation of the uses of the premise and 

dumpster storage facilities. 

(3) Off-street parking and loading areas. 

(4) Essential services as defined herein. 

(5) Ground-mounted and building-mounted satellite dish antennas less than three (3) 

feet in diameter. 

(6) Outdoor dining and non-alcohol beverage service.  (NOTE:  Outdoor alcohol 

beverage services require a premises license approved by the Common Council). 

(e) Conditional Uses.  (Also see Section 13-1-226.) 

 (1) Automobile service stations. 

 (2) Banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions, and other financial 

institutions with drive-in or drive-through facilities. 

(3) Bed and breakfast establishments providing adequate off-street parking. 

(4) Building supply stores. 

(5) Bus depots, provided all principal structures and uses are not less than one-

hundred (100) feet from any residential district lot line. 

(6) Coffee roasting. 

(7) Day care facilities. 

(8) Feed mills, and feed and seed sales. 

(9) Funeral homes, provided all principal structures and uses are not less than twelve 

(12) feet from any lot line.   

Page 24 of 118



(10) Gun shops, subject to Police Department and Plan Commission review and 

approval. 

(11) Hotels, subject to adequate off-street parking. 

(12) Indoor and outdoor recreational and entertainment facilities. 

(13) Microbreweries, soft drink production, and wineries. 

(14) Night clubs and dance halls. 

(15) Parking structures. 

(16) Pharmacies with drive-thru facilities. 

(17) Printing and reproduction services [not exceeding three thousand (3,000) square 

feet of gross floor area]. 

(18) Renewable energy systems (i.e. wind, solar, geothermal). 

(19) Telecommunications installations. 

(20) Tourist Rooming Houses   

(21) Vehicle detailing. 

(22) Wool carding. 

(23) Micro-Distilleries.  

(24) CBD Dispensaries. (?) 

(f) Dimensional Requirements.  See Table 13-1-55. 

(g) Traffic, Loading, Parking, and Access.  (See Article D.)  

(h) Nonconforming Uses, Structures, and Lots.  (See Article G.)  

(i) Performance Standards.  (See Article H.)  

(j) Signs.  (See Title 15, Chapter 5 of the Code of Ordinances.)  

(k) Site Plan Review.  (See Article F.)  

(l) Architectural Review.  (See Article F.)  

 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as 

provided by law. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 10
th
 day of June 2019. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Michael O’Keefe, Mayor    

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

 

 

 

Page 25 of 118



Page 26 of 118



Page 27 of 118



Page 28 of 118



Page 29 of 118



Page 30 of 118



Page 31 of 118



Page 32 of 118



Page 33 of 118



Page 34 of 118



Page 35 of 118



Page 36 of 118



Page 37 of 118



Page 38 of 118



Page 39 of 118



Page 40 of 118



Page 41 of 118



Page 42 of 118



Page 43 of 118



Page 44 of 118



Page 45 of 118



Page 46 of 118



Page 47 of 118



Page 48 of 118



Page 49 of 118



Page 50 of 118



Page 51 of 118



Page 52 of 118



Page 53 of 118



Page 54 of 118



Page 55 of 118



Page 56 of 118



Page 57 of 118



Page 58 of 118



Page 59 of 118



Page 60 of 118



DRAFT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-__ 

 

An Ordinance Adding Cannabidiol Dispensaries as a Conditional Use 

in the B-2 Community Business District 

 

 WHEREAS, after recommendation by the City of Cedarburg Plan Commission 

and public hearing, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg (“City”) hereby 

determines that the most appropriate zoning district for Cannabidiol (“CBD”) 

Dispensaries is the B-2 Community Business District as a Conditional Use; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Common Council’s determination is based on the following 

findings: 

 

(1) After on-site visits to CBD Dispensaries in the area by City 

officials, the Common Council finds that CBD Dispensaries are dissimilar 

to any permitted uses or conditionally permitted uses within any zoning 

district within the City. 

 

(2) The Cedarburg Police Department has expressed enforcement 

concerns with certain CBD products as they are indistinguishable from 

illegal marijuana in appearance and odor.   

 

(3) The written testimony of the National Organization for the Reform 

of Marijuana Laws (“NORML”), a leading pro-legalization of marijuana 

advocacy group, to the Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) raises 

health and safety concerns of CBD products.  NORML states in discussing 

CBD products “(…) market demand, coupled by an absence of regulatory 

guidance, has motivated predatory companies to become increasingly 

pervasive in this space.  Often times these companies market inferior 

quality products that could potentially put the consumer at risk.  To date, 

these commercially available products are not subject to lab testing to 

affirm either CBD potency or an absence of adulterants.  (…) Other 

products have revealed the presence of THC, which may put consumers in 

jeopardy for legal ramifications – such as arrest or loss of employment (due 

to a drug test failure).  Still other products have been identified to contain 

unwanted and potentially dangerous adulterants – such as 5F-ADB (aka 

‘Spice’) or DXM – as well as heavy metals and solvents.  (…)  no 

generally accepted ‘best practices’ currently exist governing CBD 

extraction from hemp.”  United States. Food and Drug 

Administration. Hearing on Scientific Data and Information about 

Products Containing Cannabis or Cannabis-Derived Compounds; Public 

Hearing; Request for Comments.  May 31, 2019. Docket No. FDA-2019-

1482 (written statement of  Paul Armentano, Deputy Director for NORML 

dated May 10, 2019).  (footnote citations made by the author are omitted 

Page 61 of 118



but access to complete written testimony can be accessed at 

https://norml.org/images/_pdf/FDA_public_comments_RE_CBD.pdf). 

 

(4) These health and safety concerns cited in paragraphs (2) and (3) 

are exacerbated in zoning districts where there are high foot traffic areas, 

proximity to schools, higher residential densities, lack of parking 

availability, festival foot traffic and lower lighting. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City recognizes consumer demand for CBD products from City 

residents and finds the most suitable district for a CBD Dispensary use to be in the B-2 

Community Business District subject to conditions; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City determines that the following conditions on CBD 

Dispensaries are reasonable and rational based on the following findings: 

 

(1) Coil-based vaping products of CBD concentrates shall be prohibited 

from sale at CBD Dispensaries due to health and safety concerns 

raised by a Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health study 

released online in Environmental Health Perspectives on February 21, 

2018 which found that “Our results add to the existing evidence that e-

cigarettes are a relevant source of exposure to a wide variety of toxic 

metals including Cr, Ni, and Pb as well as to essential metals that are 

potentially toxic through inhalation such as Mn and Zn. Metal 

concentrations in the e-liquid from the original dispenser increased 

markedly in the same e-liquid after it was added to the device and was 

brought into contact with the heating coil, both in the generated 

aerosol and in the liquid that remained in the tank. These findings 

support the hypothesis that metals are transferred from the device 

(most likely the coil) to the e-liquid and from the e-liquid to the 

aerosol that is inhaled by the user.”  Access complete study online at:  

https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/pdf/10.1289/EHP2175 

 

(2) Sale of pet products containing CBD shall be prohibited from sale at 

CBD Dispensaries as they are not approved commercial feed 

ingredients by the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and 

Consumer Protection (“DATCP”.  DATCP. See 

https://datcp.wi.gov/Documents/IHFAQ.pdf “Frequently Asked 

Questions: Wisconsin’s Industrial Hemp Pilot Research Program”, 

Updated March 13, 2019” See Section “Feed and pet treats”. 

 

(3) Sale of the dried flower of the cannabis plant for smoking shall be 

prohibited from sale due to its indistinguishable odor and appearance 

to illegal marijuana creating police enforcement complications. 

 

(4) Sale of food products containing CBD shall be prohibited unless and 

until the Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) has given guidance 

Page 62 of 118

https://norml.org/images/_pdf/FDA_public_comments_RE_CBD.pdf
https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/pdf/10.1289/EHP2175
https://datcp.wi.gov/Documents/IHFAQ.pdf


that the sale of such products are legal.  The FDA commissioner Scott 

Gottlieb’s most recent statement on the FDA’s stance is “ (…) it’s 

unlawful under the FD&C Act to introduce food containing added 

CBD or THC into interstate commerce, or to market CBD or THC 

products as, or in, dietary supplements, regardless of whether the 

substances are hemp-derived.”  The full statement can be accessed at 

https://www.fda.gov/news-events/press-announcements/statement-fda-

commissioner-scott-gottlieb-md-signing-agriculture-improvement-act-

and-agencys. 

 

(5) Due to the lack of regulation on CBD products and the risks that they 

contain illegal (as determined by Wisconsin Statutes) amounts of 

delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol (“THC”) (from the studies cited above 

by NORML), CBD Dispensaries shall make available sample 

inventory (not to exceed 4 products selected by the Cedarburg Police 

Department) upon request from the Cedarburg Police Department, not 

more than four (4) times annually for independent 3
rd

 party testing for 

THC levels. 

 

(6) Due to the lack of regulation and safety concerns cited above and the 

increased concern on their effects on children, sales to individuals 

under the age of eighteen (18) shall be prohibited. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City finds that regulating this use through zoning to be 

appropriately founded in public health, safety, morals and/or general welfare and a proper 

use of its police power (Village of Euclid v. Ambler Realty Co., 272 U.S. 365 (1926)); 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City finds that CBD Dispensaries as a conditional use is more 

consistent with the purpose of the B-2 Community Business District as stated in Section 

13-1-54(a) of the Zoning Code of the City than any other zoning district. 

 

THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, hereby 

ordains as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 13-1-54(d)(7) is amended by inserting the following and 

renumbering all of the conditional uses listed below it. By way of example, “Clubs” shall 

now be listed as a condition use under Section 13-1-54(d)(8).  

 

(7) CBD Dispensary.   

 

(a) Definitions. 

 

1. CBD Dispensary shall be defined as retail space where more than 

fifty percent (50%) of the product sales or services are from or 

Page 63 of 118

https://www.fda.gov/news-events/press-announcements/statement-fda-commissioner-scott-gottlieb-md-signing-agriculture-improvement-act-and-agencys
https://www.fda.gov/news-events/press-announcements/statement-fda-commissioner-scott-gottlieb-md-signing-agriculture-improvement-act-and-agencys
https://www.fda.gov/news-events/press-announcements/statement-fda-commissioner-scott-gottlieb-md-signing-agriculture-improvement-act-and-agencys


include products containing or purporting to contain CBD and/or 

CBD related products.   

2. CBD shall be defined as cannabidiol derived from Industrial 

Hemp. 

 

3. “CBD related products” shall be defined as any product that 

assists, or purports to assist in the ingestion, application, or 

promotion of CBD products or services related to CBD. 

 

4. Industrial Hemp shall be defined as the plant with the Latin species 

name Cannabis sativa L., or any part of the plant including the 

seeds, with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) concentration of 

not more than 0.3 percent on a dry weight basis.  

 

A CBD Dispensary may be approved by the Plan Commission provided that 

the following conditions of operation are met: 

  

(a) In addition to the requirements of Sec. 13-1-226, the applicant shall 

clearly describe the premises area where CBD products or services are 

to be sold upon application, and CBD product sales and services shall 

be confined to the described premises. 

 

(b) Sales of any product intended for human consumption containing or 

purporting to contain CBD shall be prohibited on the premises unless 

and until the Food and Drug Administration approves the legality of 

CBD infused foods. 

 

(c) Sales of pet products containing or purporting to contain CBD shall be 

prohibited on the premises unless and until deemed a legal product by 

the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer 

Protection. 

 

(d) Sales of vapor-based CBD products and cartridges shall be prohibited 

on the premises. 

 

(e) Sales of products containing or purporting to contain CBD to 

individuals who have not attained the age of eighteen (18) shall be 

prohibited. 

 

(f) Sales of dried flower of the Industrial Hemp plant for the implied or 

stated purpose of smoke inhalation shall be prohibited on the premises. 

 

(g) Sales of paraphernalia for the implied or stated purpose of smoke 

inhalation of the dried flower of the Industrial Hemp plant shall be 

prohibited on the premises.  

 

Page 64 of 118



(h) The conditional use permit holder shall agree, in addition to any other 

conditions imposed by the Plan Commission, to submit not more than 

four (4) product samples, not more than four (4) times annually upon 

request by the Cedarburg Police Department for third party testing to 

determine the level of THC, if any, in such products.  The product 

samples to be tested and the laboratory to be used shall be in the sole 

discretion of the Cedarburg Police Department and the request may be 

made at random during regular business hours.  The cost of the third 

party testing shall be paid by the permit holder.  If the tested levels of 

THC of any tested product exceed .3%, these shall alone be grounds 

for revocation.  

 

 SECTION 2. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is invalid or 

unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the other 

provisions of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 3. Effective date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication. 

 

 

 Passed and adopted this ___
th
 day of _______________, 2019. 

 

 

                                                     ________________________________ 

                                                     Michael O’Keefe, Mayor    

 

Countersigned:    

 

______________________________ 

Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney  

 

 

 

Page 65 of 118



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2019                                                                          ITEM NO:  10. A. 

 

 

TITLE: Consider proposal received from Graef for engineering design services associated with rehabilitation 

of the Woolen Mills Dam; and action thereon. 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: Graef provided an engineering services proposal to modify their plans for rehabilitating 

the Woolen Mill Dam to include repairing and activating the abandoned mill race. The mill race work would 

include a weir gate which would allow us to dewater the spillway for future maintenance, and which would 

increase the hydraulic capacity of the dam. The work would include a legal survey and easement description of 

the lands we would have to access to complete the mill race work. 

 

We are currently completing repairs to the Columbia Mills Dam, and if we are able to acquire the necessary 

easement and complete the engineering and permitting, we hope to begin construction on Woolen Mills this 

fall. 

 

The cost of this construction could be in the $600,000 range, but such specialized construction is difficult to 

estimate. The City had applied to DNR for a 50% Municipal Dam Grant for Woolen Mills Dam, but the scope 

and cost of the work has significantly increased so the grant request would have to be amended.   

 

Alternatively, if the Common Council wishes to evaluate removal of the Woolen Mills Dam, then we should 

not proceed with this contract, and possibly look to place this item on a future referendum. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends award of the engineering services contract amendment 

with Graef for Woolen Mills Dam in the amount of $34,250.00.  

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A.   

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: $34,250.00 from the Environmental Fund. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Copy of Graef proposal   

                                  

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza-Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                262-375-7610 
 
 
 

 

Page 66 of 118



Page 67 of 118



Page 68 of 118



Page 69 of 118



Page 70 of 118



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:     June 10, 2019                                              ITEM NO:  10. B. 

                           

TITLE:  Consider Resolution No. 2019-08 approving the appointment of interim judge for the Mid-Moraine 

Municipal Court; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:    Judge Steven Cain was elected as the Ozaukee County Circuit Court Judge in April.  

His term with the Mid-Moraine Municipal Court doesn’t end until April 2020; however, his term with the 

County begins on August 1, 2019.   

 

The Administrative Committee of the Court accepted applications, interviewed three final candidates and 

appointed Christine Ohlis as interim judge.  All members are being asked to adopt the resolution to accept the 

appointment.   

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution No. 2019-08 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:   None – pay for the judge remains the same and Court expenditures are paid for 

through the forfeitures.   

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Resolution No. 2019-08 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Christy Mertes 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, 375-7606 

 
    

 

 

 

Page 71 of 118



CITY OF CEDARBURG 

RESOLUTION No. 2019-08 APPROVING APPOINTMENT OF 

INTERIM JUDGE FOR THE MID-MORAINE MUNICIPAL COURT 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Hon. Steven Cain has recently been elected as a Ozaukee County Circuit 

Court Judge thereby creating a permanent vacancy in the position of the Mid-Moraine Municipal 

Judge; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Wisconsin law allows for the appointment of a successor to hold office until 

the Spring election conducted in 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the undersigned city/village/town is a member of the Mid-Moraine 

Municipal Court; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms and conditions of an intergovernmental agreement 

among the members of the Mid-Moraine Municipal Court there has been created a Court 

Administrative Committee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Court Administrative Committee has solicited applications for 

appointment to the Mid-Moraine Municipal Court Judge position; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Court Administrative Committee has duly considered the applications 

and is recommending the appointment of Christine Ohlis to fill the vacancy described above; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the undersigned city/village/town does 

hereby appoint Christine Ohlis  to serve as the municipal judge effective August 1, 2019 for the 

Mid-Moraine Municipal Court until the election of a municipal judge occurs in April 2020; and 

 

 FURTHER RESOLVED, that the officers of the undersigned city/village/town are hereby 

authorized and directed to take any and all action consistent with this approving resolution. 

 

 Adopted this 10
th

 day of June, 2019. 

 

       City of Cedarburg    

       Enter Name of Municipality 

 

 

       By: ________________________________ 

              Michael O’Keefe, Mayor   

  

       

Attest: 

 

___________________________________ 

Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

Page 72 of 118



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2019                                                                      ITEM NO:   10. C. 

 

                           

TITLE:   Consider establishing hours for the North 48 Outdoor Alcohol Beverage License at W62 N599 

Washington Avenue; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Chief Frank and city staff has received noise complaints regarding the outdoor beer 

garden at North 48.  He is suggesting the hours for outdoor beer garden end at 11:00 p.m. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    N/A 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  None 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Related emails 

 

     

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:   Chief Frank 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Chief Frank, 375-7620 
 
 

 

Page 73 of 118



Page 74 of 118



Page 75 of 118



Page 76 of 118



Page 77 of 118



Page 78 of 118



Page 79 of 118



Page 80 of 118



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2019                                                                      ITEM NO:   10. D. 

 

                           

TITLE:   Consider application of Le’s Pho LLC, Ly Q Le, Agent, for a “Class B” Liquor license for Le’s Pho 

at W63 N146 Washington Avenue; and action thereon 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   The Class “B” beer and “Class C” wine of Ly Q Le of Le’s Pho was renewed by the 

Council at the May 13 meeting.  Mr. Le has now applied for one of three “Class B” liquor licenses that are 

available. 

 

The three available liquor licenses are: 

 Kowloon Chinese Restaurant Inc., W63 N145 Washington Avenue – business closed a few months ago 

 RESERVE license (one-time application fee of $10,000 plus $500 annual fee) from the August Weber 

Haus 

 The liquor license from Grapes and Tastes that will be available July 1 as the business is closing.  The 

owners have not applied to renew the current license. 

 

On March 11 letters were mailed to those individuals on the Liquor License Notification List informing them 

that two liquor licenses were available (the closing of Grapes and Tastes was not known at that time).  Mr. Le 

was the only interested party that came forward to apply for a liquor license. 

 

(The City is 27 residents away from obtaining another “Class B” RESERVE license.  Any licenses that occur 

through an increase in population are reserve licenses). 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    N/A 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $500 annually. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 

     

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:   Le Q. Le of Le’s Pho 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Amy Kletzien, Deputy Clerk 
 
 

 

Page 81 of 118



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-09 

 

A Resolution designating Depositories and Authorizing Signatures 

for the City of Cedarburg Checking and Savings Accounts 
 

 RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, that the following 

banking institutions or their successors: 

 

 Associated Bank, Grafton Wisconsin 

 U.S. Bank, Cedarburg & Milwaukee, Wisconsin 

 BMO Harris Bank, Milwaukee & Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

 Local Government Investment Pool, State of Wisconsin 

 Cornerstone Community Bank, Grafton, Wisconsin 

 Port Washington State Bank, Cedarburg, Wisconsin 

 Commerce State Bank, Cedarburg & West Bend, Wisconsin 

  

qualified as depositories under Chapter 34 of the Wisconsin Statutes, shall be and are hereby 

designated until further action as public depositories for all monies coming into the hands of the 

City Administrator/Treasurer of the City of Cedarburg, State of Wisconsin, and all other city 

officers included in the provisions of Chapter 34 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that Port Washington State Bank, Cedarburg, Wisconsin, be 

designated as the working bank for May 1, 2019 through April 30, 2020 and that the Common 

Council and the City Administrator/Treasurer be authorized and directed to distribute the city 

funds. 

 

 RESOLVED FUTHER, that the City Administrator/Treasurer be hereby instructed to 

deposit city funds only in such institutions as may be approved by the State of Wisconsin 

Investment Board and are eligible to receive public funds. 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that the depositories shall furnish collateral for city funds on 

deposit pursuant to Investment Policy FC-4. 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that withdrawal or disbursement from any of the above named 

depositories shall be by order check, written wire transfer, telephone wire transfer, or other 

money transfer techniques, and, in the case of savings accounts, by savings withdrawal form, as 

provided in Section 66.0607 of the Wisconsin Statutes.  Written and telephone wire transfers 

shall be in accordance with the named depositories guidelines and shall only be made by 

authorized personnel.  In accordance therewith all order check and savings withdrawal forms, 

effective immediately, shall be signed by any three of the following persons: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82 of 118



S. Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

Christine L. Mertes, City Administrator/Treasurer 

Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor or 

Patricia Thome, Acting Mayor 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that in lieu of their personal signatures, the following 

signatures, which have been adopted by them as below shown: 

 

Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor 

 

Sarah Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

 

Christine L. Mertes, City Administrator/Treasurer 

 

may be affixed on such order checks and savings withdrawal forms that any one of the above 

named depositories shall be fully warranted and protected in making payment on any other check 

bearing such facsimiles notwithstanding that the same may have been placed thereon without the 

authority of the designated person or persons. 

 

 Passed and adopted by the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg this 10
th

 day of  

June, 2019. 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Michael J. O’Keefe, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

____________________________  

Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

       

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

 

 

Page 83 of 118



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-10 

 

A Resolution designating Depositories and Authorizing Signatures - 

Cedarburg Light & Water Commission Checking and Savings Accounts 
 

 RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, that the following 

banking institutions and possible successors: 

 

 BMO-Harris Bank 

Commerce State Bank 

Port Washington State Bank 

Chase Bank 

Cornerstone Community Bank 

Wells Fargo 

First Bank (DBA Partnership Community Bank)  

American Depository Management Company 

State of Wisconsin Investment Pool 

  

qualified as depositories under Chapter 34 of the Wisconsin Statutes, shall be and are hereby 

designated until further action as public depositories for all monies coming into the hands of the 

City Administrator/Treasurer, Cedarburg Light & Water Commission, City of Cedarburg, State 

of Wisconsin, and all other city officers included in the provisions of Chapter 34 of the 

Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that Harris Bank, NA, – Cedarburg, Wisconsin, Port 

Washington State Bank – Cedarburg, Wisconsin and Commerce State Bank – Cedarburg, 

Wisconsin, be designated as the working banks for the years 2018-2019 and that the Common 

Council and the City Administrator/Treasurer, upon recommendation of the Cedarburg Light & 

Water Commission, be authorized and directed to distribute said funds. 

 

 RESOLVED FUTHER, that the City Administrator/Treasurer or other authorized 

representatives, including employees of the Cedarburg Light & Water Commission, be hereby 

instructed to deposit Cedarburg Light & Water Commission funds only in such institutions as 

may be approved by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board and are eligible to receive public 

funds. 

  

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that withdrawal or disbursement from any of the above named 

depositories shall be by order of check, written wire transfer, telephone wire transfer, or other 

money transfer techniques, and, in the case of savings accounts, by savings withdrawal form, as 

provided in Section 66.0607 of the Wisconsin Statutes.  Written and telephone wire transfers 

shall be in accordance with the named depositories guidelines and shall only be made by 

authorized personnel appointed by the Cedarburg light & Water Commission.  All checks and 

passbook savings withdrawal forms, effective October 1, 2018, shall be signed by all of the 

following persons: 

 

 

Page 84 of 118



Blaine Hilgendorf, President 

 

  James W. Coutts, Secretary 

 

S. Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that for all check orders and passbook savings withdrawal 

forms, in lieu of their personal signatures, the following facsimile signatures as shown, which 

have been adopted by them, may be affixed to such document and will become effective as of 

October 1, 2018: 

 

Blaine Hilgendorf, President 

 

James W. Coutts, Secretary 

 

Sarah Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that any one of the above named depositories shall be fully 

warranted and protected in making payment on any check order bearing such facsimiles 

notwithstanding that the same may have been placed thereon with the authority of the designated 

person or persons. 

 

 Passed and adopted by the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg this 10
th

 day of 

June, 2019. 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Michael O’Keefe, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Claire Woodall-Vogg, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

       

Michael P. Herbrand, City Attorney 

 

 

Page 85 of 118



Page 86 of 118



Page 87 of 118



Page 88 of 118



Page 89 of 118



Page 90 of 118



Page 91 of 118



Page 92 of 118



Page 93 of 118



Page 94 of 118



Page 95 of 118



Page 96 of 118



Page 97 of 118



Page 98 of 118



Page 99 of 118



Page 100 of 118



Page 101 of 118



Page 102 of 118



Page 103 of 118



Page 104 of 118



Page 105 of 118



Page 106 of 118



Page 107 of 118



Page 108 of 118



Page 109 of 118



Page 110 of 118



Page 111 of 118



Page 112 of 118



Page 113 of 118



Page 114 of 118



Page 115 of 118



Page 116 of 118



Page 117 of 118



Page 118 of 118


	Agenda 06-10-19
	CC Minutes 05 13 19
	Blue Sheet - B-3 Text Amendment PH
	Ord 2019-10 - B-3 Text Amendment
	CBD Related Documents
	Proposed Ordinance - CBD Dispenaries B-2 District
	Blue Sheet - Woolen Mills Dam
	Graef Prposal - Woolen Mills Dam
	Blue Sheet - Mid-moraine Judge
	Res 2019-08 - Municipal Judge
	Blue Sheet - North 48 Beer Garden hours
	Emails re North 48
	Blue Sheet - Le's Pho
	Res 2019-09 - Depositories
	Res 2019-10 - L&W Depositories
	Bills
	City Administrators Report 06-6-19
	Buliding Inspectors Report - May 2019
	Fire Inspection Report - April 2019



